Clean Water Legacy Partners 
FY2027 Request for Proposals Application Guide

IMPORTANT! 
1) Using this guide is optional.
2) You may use this guide to prepare your responses in Microsoft Word and then copy and paste into the online application using BWSR’s eLINK grant management system.
3) This guide is not a replacement for your online application. It is for your use only and should not be submitted to BWSR.
[bookmark: _Toc217303665]Introduction
Thanks for your interest in the Clean Water Legacy Partners (CWLP) grant program administered by the State of Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR). This guide is designed to help you prepare a complete and competitive application in response to the CWLP FY2027 Request for Proposals (RFP). 
The format of this guide allows partners in an organization to view the grant application offline and collaborate on one document prior to formal submittal into BWSR’s eLINK grant management system. Responses to application questions can be entered into this Word document, then pasted into eLINK. This guide also demonstrates how each application question is related to the criteria our review team will use to evaluate and score your proposal.
Note that many eLINK application fields have character limits. For example, answers to application questions are limited to 2000 characters. Character counts may differ slightly between Microsoft Word and eLINK due to differences in how the characters are encoded. 
[bookmark: _Toc217303666]eLINK Funding Request
[bookmark: _Toc217303667]Section 1: Beginning a New Funding Request
Note: Avoid initiating multiple funding requests for a single proposal. Any abandoned requests cannot be deleted until the Request for Proposal period ends. 

Allocation Type: Select “Open Funding Opportunities” on the main eLINK dashboard to view all current funding opportunities.
Select one of these options from the list and click on Start Request.
☐ Clean Water Legacy Partners FY27 NP (for Nonprofit organizations)
☐ Clean Water Legacy Partners FY27 Tribal (for Tribal organizations)
Project Title
	


The project title can be changed before you submit your request. If you are awarded, this will become the title of your grant so double check for accuracy before submitting. 
Abstract and Proposed Outcomes: 
Project Abstract. Provide a concise summary of your proposal including the following: project location, problem statement, goals and objectives, and activities. (Character limit: 4000)  

Proposed Measurable Outcomes: Clearly state the specific, measurable outcomes from the proposed activities, including numeric estimates where possible. (Character limit: 500)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Abstract and Proposed Outcomes, 5 Points

	· Is the project location well defined?

	· What is the problem statement and its link to clear, viable goals and objectives?

	· Are relevant and actionable activities described?

	· Are outcomes realistic with a clear water quality benefit?


The preferred answer will have a defined location with a problem statement that is clearly linked to the proposal’s goals and objectives.  The answer will also concisely describe relevant and actionable activities and outcomes with a clear water quality benefit.  
Outcomes can be measured quantitatively or qualitatively. Examples of quantitative metrics include pounds of phosphorus pollution reduction, number of wells sealed, acres of cover crops planted, number of rain gardens installed, or number of workshops held. Qualitative metrics may consist of interviews, survey results, or participant feedback. 
[bookmark: _Toc217303668]Section 2: Application Questions
Primary Contact: Who will be the primary contact for this application/grant?
	[bookmark: _Hlk216419841]


If the request is awarded, this person will receive notification of the award and will serve as the primary point of contact with BWSR for grant-related questions. 
Fiscal Agent: Provide Fiscal Agent name, if applicable.
	[bookmark: _Hlk216419881]


You only need to enter a Fiscal Agent if an organization other than the lead applicant will be receiving the grant funds and managing fiscal responsibilities for the grant
General Project Location: Identify the county or counties where the proposed activities will occur.
	


When making selections in eLINK use Ctrl+Click to select/de-select multiple counties.
Criminal Attestation: Applicants must be able to confirm the attestation required by MN Statute 16B.981 Subd. 2(6) that no current principals of a grantee’s organization with authority to access funds or determine how funds are used has been convicted of a felony financial crime in the last 10 years.
Application Question One: Identify the water resource that will benefit from the proposal.  Why is this water resource a high priority for the proposed activities? (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Water Resource, 10 Points

	· Is the project targeting a specific water resource?

	· Are the proposed activities likely to produce clean water outcomes?

	· Does evidence justify its high priority status?


The preferred answer will target one or more specific water resources, rather than referencing water in broad or general terms. The proposal will explain (using evidence) why the water resource should be considered a high priority for funding
Reasons a water resource might be considered high priority include, but are not limited to: 
a. Vulnerable drinking water sources
b. Waters meeting impairment thresholds
c. Waters close to impairment thresholds
d. Waters with declining water quality
e. Waters with high sensitivity to nutrient loading
f. High quality waters at risk based on watershed and near-shore land use
g. Waters that have cultural or community significance
Application Question Two: What activities are included in your proposal? Provide a brief explanation of the budget assigned to each of your activities. Demonstrate how the proposed activities will benefit the water resource. (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Activities, 15 Points

	· Does the proposal clearly define the activities?

	· Are they feasible with appropriate budgets?

	· Do the activities relate to proposal outcomes?

	· Is there a direct link between the outcomes and water quality benefits?


The preferred answer will clearly define the activities in the proposal and include appropriate budgets for each activity.  The activities described in your response should correspond to the activities identified in Section 4 of your application (see below). The answer should also explain how activities are linked to the proposed outcomes and water quality benefits. Responses that score highly will feature feasible projects with appropriate budgets whose activities have a direct link to water quality benefits.
Application Question Three: Detail your organization’s capacity and readiness to implement the proposed project soon after grant award. Include information on organizational expertise, previous project and funding experience, and how the required 10% match and final 10% grant payment that is provided as reimbursement will be secured. (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Organizational Readiness, 10 Points

	· Is the organization ready to implement project upon award?

	· Does the organization have the capacity to complete proposed activities?
· Do staff members have the experience to manage and implement the proposal?

	· Are previous projects connected to clean water provided?

	· Will required match and reimbursed funds be secured?


The preferred answer will show that the organization has the capacity to complete the proposed activities and is ready to implement projects soon after the grant is awarded.  Responses that score highly will also show a link to the organization’s previous clean water projects and that the organization has the experience to implement and manage the proposal.
For awarded grants, the grantee will be required to provide a 10% non-state match. The grantee must also self-pay the final 10% of the grant, which is paid out as reimbursement after the final project reporting is complete.
Application Question Four: Describe how your proposal supports or is connected to a local, state, or Tribal water management plan addressing high-priority or impaired waters. Explain how your project contributes to achieving progress toward established goals. (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Plan Alignment, 15 Points

	· Are water management plans identified in the proposal?  

	· Is the proposal clearly aligned with a state or local water management plan?

	· Does the application provide specific examples of how it will advance the identified plans goals and objectives?  


The preferred answer will identify one or more relevant water management plans and show that the proposal is clearly aligned with the plan(s). Answers that score highly will demonstrate that the proposal will directly advance the plan’s goals and objectives.
Examples of specific water management plans include, but are not limited to:
a. Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan
b. Watershed District Management Plan
c. SWCD Comprehensive Plans
d. Metro Watershed Management Plan
Application Question Five: Summarize your proposal’s intended outcomes. What quantitative or qualitative metrics will you use to demonstrate success? How will the proposal’s outcomes be sustained or built upon after completion of the grant?   (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Outcomes, 15 Points

	· Are proposal outcomes clear and relevant?  

	· Does that proposal use well-defined metrics that are directly linked to project goals?

	· Is there a realistic plan for sustaining results after grant funding ends?


The preferred answer will have clear, well-defined outcomes that can be estimated and measured using numbers (quantitatively) or described (qualitative). The chosen metrics should be directly linked to proposal goals. 
Many water quality outcomes can be estimated numerically using models; for more information about calculating these estimates, visit Water Quality Tools and Models and eLINK Guidance: Choosing the Best Estimator. In some cases, descriptive metrics may be more appropriate. Examples include proposals that focus on education/awareness, perceptions, policy/advocacy, or feasibility studies. 
The answer should also consider whether the proposal’s outcomes require future efforts to be sustained or advanced. For example, if the grant is used to fund a rain garden, what resources are available to maintain it? Or, if you are completing a feasibility study, what plans are in place to implement identified projects? Answers that score highly will show that there is a realistic plan in place for sustaining the project after grant funding ends.
Application Question Six: Does the project occur in or benefit an Environmental Justice Area as defined by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (link to map)?  (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Environmental Justice, 5 points

	· Is the project located in a defined Environmental Justice Area?

	· If the project is not located in a defined environmental justice area, does it provide benefits to environmental justice communities in some way?   


High scoring responses will identify project areas within a mapped MPCA Environmental Justice Area. If the location of the proposal is not within a mapped MPCA Environmental Justice Area, the applicant should consider and describe whether it provides benefits to any defined environmental justice communities. For example, does the proposal improve water quality and habitat in a lake frequently used by defined environmental justice communities for subsistence fishing?  
Application Question Seven: Describe the community or communities your project will serve and their water quality challenges. How will these communities participate in or benefit from the project? (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Public Benefit, 10 Points

	· Does the proposal describe the communities affected by the project?

	· Are water quality issues or challenges identified and supported by data?

	· Is the community engaged in any aspect of the project (development, implementation, or stewardship)?  

	· Will the community benefit from project outcomes?


The preferred answer will clearly articulate information about the communities the project will serve, including their water quality issues or challenges, supported by relevant data.  Answers that score highly will also describe how affected communities are engaged in the project, such as integrating community input into project selection or design, or using community volunteers for project implementation, stewardship, or maintenance.
Application Question Eight: Demonstrate how you will use partnerships and collaborative efforts to expand your proposal’s impact or enhance its effectiveness? (character limit: 2000)  

	Evaluation Criteria: Partnerships and Collaborations, 10 Points

	· Do partnerships include nontraditional or community-based partners?
· Are partnerships necessary for the project to succeed?

	· Does the proposal show that the contributions of partners strengthen outcomes?


The preferred answer will describe multiple and diverse partnerships, including those with nontraditional or community-based partners. Partners should be relevant to the proposal and collaborate in ways that contribute to the project’s success. Answers that score highly will show that proposal outcomes are strengthened by partners and will expand clean water benefits.
[bookmark: _Toc217303669]Section 3: Team Membership
Team members are the eLINK users who can view or edit your application. By default, existing eLINK users affiliated with your organization will show up under the “Team Membership” application tab.  There is a search function to add additional team members, keeping in mind that they must first register as eLINK users.
Use the table below to identify your team members, their permission level, and whether they have an existing eLINK account.
	Team Member
	Permission Level (View or Edit)
	Existing eLINK account (Y/N)

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	


[bookmark: _Toc217303670]Section 4: Activities and Budget
You will use activities to describe the work being accomplished with your grant and match funds. The amount and types of activities in your proposal highly depend on the nature of your project(s). However, lean towards grouping versus splitting where possible. If your proposal is funded, this will make future reporting and budgeting easier.
For each activity in your proposal, you will need to provide the following information:
1. Activity Name
Choose a name for your activity
2. Activity Category
eLINK contains a dropdown menu with 21 activity categories to choose from. Visit BWSR’s eLINK guidance page for a description of each activity category.   
Tips for selecting the appropriate activity category:
· Does your activity include on the ground work? If so, you are installing a practice and will need to consult BWSR’s Chart of Practices by Activity Category to check that your practice is listed under your selected activity category. See eLINK Guidance: Practices for a list of available practices and descriptions.
· The Administration/Coordination category is for staff time spent directly administering the grant (reporting, records management, etc.)
· The Project Development category is for staff time spent on other activities that support the project.
· Staff time can be included as an expense for any activity.
3. Requested Amount
Each activity in your application requires its own budget. Keep in mind that the review team will consider activity budgets in their scoring and whether they appear cost effective and reasonable. Proposals that allocate large portions of their budget to administrative costs may be less competitive. 
4. Activity Description
Provide a brief description of the activity, including specific practices, where applicable. If the activity does not include practices with production reduction estimates, check the following box under the “Activity Description” heading in eLINK:
☐ Check here if this activity does not include proposed pollution reduction estimates
5. Indicators
[bookmark: _Hlk219376635]Installed practices should have pollution reduction estimates (indicators) included with the activity whenever possible. Indicators can be added for each type of pollutant addressed by the project. For more information about calculating these estimates, visit Water Quality Tools and Models and eLINK Guidance: Choosing the Best Estimator.
Activities Table. Use the table attached at the end of this guide able to organize your activity information.
[bookmark: _Toc217303671]Section 5. Match and “Other” Funds 
Based on the total amount you budgeted for your activities, eLINK will calculate your minimum 10% required non-state match.  You will be required to enter the amount of the non-state match being provided.  It can be greater than the 10% minimum required.
Use this space for notes on match funds.  

The application also includes a field “Other Funds.” This is intended to be other sources of funding (ex. State) that will be used for the project but may not be eligible to be used as match.
Use this space for notes on other funds.  

[bookmark: _Toc217303672]Section 6. Optional Image Attachment 
Every proposal can include one optional image attachment. Maps, photos, flyers, or diagrams are examples of common image attachments. The image must be provided in one of the following file types: .jpg, .jpeg, .gif, .png, and .tiff. 
Use this space for notes on your attachment.  

[bookmark: _Toc217303673]Section 7. Emailed Documents 
Your application may require that one or more documents be emailed to BWSR (BWSR.grants@state.mn.us) for it to be considered complete.
Is your organization a nonprofit?  If so, you will be required to complete and submit a Pre-award Nonprofit form and associated financial documents. Download the form on BWSR’s Apply for Grants webpage and email your completed form and associated documents to BWSR.grants@state.mn.us by the RFP deadline for your application to be considered complete. 
Are you proposing in lake treatments such as alum or carp removal? If so, a feasibility study must be emailed to BWSR.grants@state.mn.us by the RFP deadline for your application to be complete.
Use this space for notes on emailed documents.  

Other documents such as letters of support are not considered in the proposal review process and should not be emailed to BWSR. 
[bookmark: _Toc217303674]Submitting Your Application
If you are using this Application Guide to draft your application, you will need to copy and paste your responses into the online application in eLINK
· This Application Guidance document is for your organizational use only and is not a substitution for applying in eLINK. 
· See BWSR’s Completing a Funding Request in eLINK video (approx. 11 min) for a tutorial. 
· Do not email this document to BWSR grant staff. 
For questions about RFP or application, please contact cwfquestions@state.mn.us. For questions regarding eLINK, please contact elinksupport@state.mn.us. 
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Attachment
Activity Table
This table can be used to organize your activity information prior to entering into eLINK
	Activity Name

	Activity Category 
	Request Amount (budget) 
	Activity Description 
	Pollution reduction estimates (indicators) *

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


* Pollution reduction estimates (indicators) apply only to activities with on the ground work (practices)
